In the Supreme Court of the State of California

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA,

Plaintiff and Respondent,

v.

STEVEN LLOYD MOSLEY,

Defendant and Appellant.

S **S187965**

Fourth Appellate District, Division Three, Case No. G038379
Orange County Superior Court, Case No. 05NF4105
The Honorable David Hoffer, Judge

SUPREME COURT
FILED

NOV - 8 2010

Frederick K. Ohlrich Clerk

Deputy

PETITION FOR REVIEW

EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
Attorney General of California
DANE R. GILLETTE
Chief Assistant Attorney General
GARY W. SCHONS
Senior Assistant Attorney General
JANET NEELEY
Deputy Attorney General
ANGELA M. BORZACHILLO
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 170717

QUESTION PRESENTED

Does Jessica's Law's residency restriction¹ render discretionarily imposed sex-offender registration pursuant to Penal Code section 290.006² unconstitutional under *Apprendi v. New Jersey* (2000) 530 U.S. 466, 120 S.Ct. 2348, 147 L.Ed.2d 435, in the absence of a jury trial on the facts required to support the registration order?

¹Sexual Predator Punishment and Control Act: Jessica's Law (Pen. Code, § 3003.5, subd. (b), added by Prop. 83, as approved by voters, Gen. Elec. (Nov. 7, 2006) provides as follows:

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, it is unlawful for any person for whom registration is required pursuant to Section 290 to reside within 2000 feet of any public or private school, or park where children regularly gather.

²Penal Code section 290.006 provides as follows:

Any person ordered by any court to register pursuant to the Act for any offense not included specifically in subdivision (c) of Section 290, shall so register, if the court finds at the time of conviction or sentencing that the person committed the offense as a result of sexual compulsion or for purposes of sexual gratification. The court shall state on the record the reasons for its findings and the reasons for requiring registration.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Twelve-year-old L.C. met appellant Steven Mosley while staying at her grandmother's apartment. (1 RT 41-43; 2 RT 242-243.) On the evening of the day they met, Mosley surprised L.C. and kissed her on the lips. (1 RT 44; 2 RT 331.) A few days later, Mosley approached L.C. in the carport area of the apartment complex. (1 RT 45-46.) He kissed her on the neck while repeatedly saying in her ear to relax and say nothing. (1 RT 45-46; 51-52.) L.C. tried to move away but Mosley pinned her to the wall with the weight of his body, holding her wrists, so that she could not move. (1 RT 51-52, 62.) Mosley tried to "stick" his tongue in her mouth. He put his hand up her shirt and down her pants, grabbing her "boobs" and "butt" and rubbing her between her legs. (1 RT 62-63.) He pulled down his jersey shorts and ripped L. C.'s "skorts" as he pulled them to one side. (1 RT 52, 134.) Mosley then put his penis in L.C.'s vagina for about two minutes. (1 RT 54; see also Slip Opn. at p. 5.)

An Orange County jury found Mosley guilty of simple assault in violation of Penal Code section 240, a lesser included offense of the crime charged crime of committing a lewd act upon a child under 14 in violation of Penal Code section 288(a). (1 CT 94-95, 97.) The trial court sentenced Mosley to serve six months in the county jail with 180 days credit for time served. (1 CT 169; 2 RT 445.) In addition, after finding Mosley's assault was sexually motivated, the trial court ordered him to register as sex-offender pursuant to then Penal Code section 290,³ but stayed registration pending appeal. (1 CT 169; 2 RT 445; see also Slip. Opn. at p. 7.)

On appeal, Mosley challenged the trial court's sex-offender registration order. In its first opinion, the Court of Appeal held that the residency restriction set forth in Jessica's Law is punitive so that its

³See now Pen. Code, § 290.006.

imposition by the trial court increased the penalty for Mosley's misdemeanor assault beyond the prescribed statutory maximum based on the jury verdict alone. The Court of Appeal concluded that, under *Apprendi*, Mosley was entitled to a jury trial on the facts - - i.e., that the crime was committed out of sexual compulsion or for sexual gratification - - required to impose the discretionary registration obligation that triggered the residency restriction. The Court of Appeal, therefore, struck the registration order. (Slip. Opn. at p. 2.)

Respondent filed a petition for review in this Court. On March 18, 2009, this Court granted review and deferred briefing pending the disposition of *In re E.J. on Habeas Corpus*, S156933. On April 28, 2010, this Court remanded the matter to the Court of Appeal with directions to vacate its decision and reconsider the cause in light of *In re E.J.* (2010) 47 Cal.4th 1258. (Slip. Opn. at p. 2.)

After supplemental briefing, the Court of Appeal issued a published opinion that again found that Jessica's Law's residency restriction constituted punishment, and that again struck the registration order because it triggered the residency restriction in the absence of jury-trial findings supporting the registration order, under *Apprendi*. (Slip Opn. at p. 3, 26-27.)

NECESSITY FOR REVIEW

THE COURT OF APPEAL DECISION CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF THIS COURT ON AN IMPORTANT QUESTION OF LAW INVOLVING ENFORCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONALLY VALID SEX-OFFENDER REGISTRATION

The Court of Appeal held the residency-restriction provision of Jessica's Law constituted a penalty beyond the statutory maximum punishment for Mosley's conviction offense so that he was entitled under *Apprendi* to a jury trial on the facts necessary to support the discretionary

registration obligation that triggered the residency restriction. The court concluded, therefore, that the registration order itself must be struck.

In doing so, the court unnecessarily impaired the important operation of the registration requirement authorized by Penal Code section 290.006. The court's interference with the registration requirement conflicts with this Court's decisions recognizing that the registration requirement is not "punishment," and also recognizing that the registration requirement would remain valid regardless of any invalidity in the residency restriction.

Review is warranted to settle this important question of law. (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 8.500 (b)(1).)

ARGUMENT

JESSICA'S LAW'S RESIDENCY RESTRICTION DOES NOT RENDER DISCRETIONARILY IMPOSED SEX-OFFENDER REGISTRATION UNCONSTITUTIONAL

Regardless whether the Jessica's Law's residency restriction constitutes added punishment under *Apprendi*, it does not follow that the discretionary imposition of sex-offender registration pursuant to section 290.006 should be affected. First, this Court has long held that sex-offender registration does not constitute punishment. (*People v. Hofsheier* (2006) 37 Cal.4th 1185, 1197 citing *In re Alva* (2004) 33 Cal.4th 254, 268; *People v. Castellanos* (1999) 21 Cal.4th 785, 796.) So the registration order remained valid in this case without any need for additional *Apprendi* findings.

Similarly, whether the residency restriction is valid does not affect whether the registration requirement is valid. This Court made that clear in *People v. Picklesimer* (2010) 48 Cal.4th 330, 344. There, the Court explained that, whether the residency restriction is punishment or not, there was no constitutional bar to having a judge exercise his or her discretion to

determine whether the defendant in that case should continue to be subject to registration.

In other words, even if the residency restriction is invalid, a trial court may still order sex-offender registration pursuant to section 290.006. Furthermore, severing the effect of the residency restriction from section 290.006, if the restriction operates unconstitutionally, would cure the allegedly offending disability and avoids unnecessary impairment of sex-offender registration.

The Court of Appeal opinion confuses the residency restriction with indisputably valid registration, impairs the registration regime, and conflicts with this Court's precedents.