## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

Plaintiff and Respondent,

v.

STEVEN LLOYD MOSLEY,

Defendant and Appellant.

S187965

Court of Appeal No. G038379

(Orange County Superior Court No. 05NF4105)

SUPREME COURT

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

NOV 17 2010

Frederick N. Official Clerk

Deputy

ALLISON H. TING, SB 164933 Law Office of Allison H. Ting 1158 26<sup>th</sup> Street, # 609 Santa Monica, CA 90403

Tel. & Fax.: (310) 826-4592

Attorney for Appellant by appointment of the Court of Appeal under Appellate Defender's Inc., independent case system

### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

S187965

Plaintiff and Respondent,

Court of Appeal No. G038379

v.

STEVEN LLOYD MOSLEY,

Defendant and Appellant.

(Orange County Superior Court No. 05NF4105)

### ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

ALLISON H. TING, SB 164933 Law Office of Allison H. Ting 1158 26<sup>th</sup> Street, # 609 Santa Monica, CA 90403

Tel. & Fax.: (310) 826-4592

Attorney for Appellant by appointment of the Court of Appeal under Appellate Defender's Inc., independent case system

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT1
ANSWER TO QUESTION PRESENTED1
THE OPINION DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH ANY OF THE CITED DECISIONS OF THIS COURT ON ANY IMPORTANT QUESTION OF LAW.
CONCLUSION4
TABLE OF AUTHORITIES
FEDERAL CASES
Apprendi v. New Jersey (2000) 530 U.S. 466
Boykin v. Alabama (1969) 395 U.S. 238
California Cases
<i>In re Alva</i> (2004) 33 Cal.4 <sup>th</sup> 2542
People v. Barragan (2004) 32 Cal.4th 236
People v. Castellanos (1999) 21 Cal.4 <sup>th</sup> 7852
People v. Hofsheier (2006) 37 Cal.4 <sup>th</sup> 1185
People v. Picklesimer (2010) 48 Cal.4 <sup>th</sup> 330
CALIFORNIA STATUTES
Penal Code § 290.006
Penal Code § 3003.5, subd. (b)2

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

S187965

Plaintiff and Respondent,

G038379

v.

SUPREME COURT:

(Orange County Superior Court No. 05NF4105)

STEVEN LLOYD MOSLEY.

Defendant and Appellant.

TO THE HONORABLE RONALD M. GEORGE, CHIEF JUSTICE, AND TO THE HONORABLE ASSOCIATE JUSTICES OF THE CALIFORNIA

Pursuant to rule 8.500, subdivision (a)(2) of the California Rules of Court, appellant makes this Answer to the Petition for Review filed November 5, 2010.

## ANSWER TO QUESTION PRESENTED

Jessica's Law residency restriction renders discretionarily imposed sex-offender registration pursuant to Penal Code section 290.006 unconstitutional under *Apprendi v. New Jersey* (2000) 530 U.S. 466, in the absence of a jury trial, or waiver thereof, on the facts required to support the registration order.

# THE OPINION DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH ANY OF THE CITED DECISIONS OF THIS COURT ON ANY IMPORTANT QUESTION OF LAW

The Petition for Review states the Court of Appeal decision "conflicts with decisions of this Court on an important question of law involving enforcement of constitutionally valid sex-offender registration." (Pet'n,, p. 3.) Appellant disagrees.

Respondent's Petition cites *People v. Hofsheier* (2006) 37 Cal.4<sup>th</sup> 1185, 1197, *In re Alva* (2004) 33 Cal.4<sup>th</sup> 254, 268, and *People v. Castellanos* (1999) 21 Cal.4<sup>th</sup> 785, 796, for the proposition that "sex-offender registration does not constitute punishment." (Pet'n., p. 4.)

But, as the Opinion notes, "the effect of sex offender registration changed when the voters approved Jessica's Law in 2006." (Pet'n.

Attachment, p. 17, italics added.) Hofsheier, Castellanos, and Alva addressed issues in cases pre-dating passage of Jessica's Law. Thus, they had no occasion to consider whether sex-offender registration now involves a new and onerous burden. It is well established that cases are not authority for propositions not considered therein. (People v. Barragan (2004) 32 Cal.4th 236, 243.)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> "Jessica's Law," codified at Penal Code section 3003.5, subdivision (b), was approved by the passage of Proposition 83, the "Sexual Predator Punishment and Control Act: Jessica's Law."

Because sex-offender registration now triggers Jessica's Law residency restriction, which is punitive in effect, the underlying facts must be submitted to a jury and proved beyond a reasonable doubt (*Apprendi v. New Jersey, supra,* 530 U.S. 466), or the facts may be admitted (see generally *Boykin v. Alabama* (1969) 395 U.S. 238, 242-244). Thus, there is no conflict between the decision below and any of the three cases above.

Respondent's Petition also cites *People v. Picklesimer* (2010) 48

Cal.4<sup>th</sup> 330, 344, for the proposition that "whether the residency restriction is valid does not affect whether the registration requirement is valid."

(Pet'n., p. 4.) "In other words, even if the residency restriction is invalid, a trial court may still order sex-offender registration pursuant to section 290.006." (Pet'n., p. 5.)

But the Opinion below does not address the question whether

Jessica's Law is "valid" or "invalid." It never says Jessica's Law on its
face is unconstitutional, or invalid. It simply says Jessica's Law is punitive,
and is a new consequence of sex-offender registration, which makes sexoffender registration punitive. But punitive measures are not
unconstitutional, so long as the triggering facts are proved to a jury beyond
a reasonable doubt, or admitted.

The triggering facts for imposition of Jessica's Law on a person not subject to mandatory registration are found in Penal Code section 290.006:

"... that the person committed the offense as a result of sexual compulsion

or for purposes of sexual gratification." (Italics added.) Submission of these factual questions to a jury is what the Opinion requires. Nothing about this holding conflicts with *Picklesimer*.

### **CONCLUSION**

Accordingly, for the above stated reasons, appellant asks this court to deny review of this matter.